
 OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP BOARD 
7275 West Main Street  
Kalamazoo, MI 49009 

April 9, 2024 

Refer to page 3 for Virtual Meeting Information 

REGULAR MEETING 
5:30 P.M. 
AGENDA 

1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Remote Location Identification (for remote attendance when permitted by statute)

4. Township Mission/Vision/Core Values: Transparent governmental practices are of the highest

priority.

5. Public Comment on Non-Regular Session Items

6. Public Officials Updates

a. Sean McBride, Executive Director METRO

7. Consent Agenda

a. Meeting Minutes [Minutes Regular Board Meeting, March 26, 2024]

b. Meeting Minutes [Minutes Joint Boards Meeting March 19, 2024]

c. Receipts and Disbursements [March 2024]

d. Second Reading: Text Amendments to Floodplain Management Ordinance, Section
273.003: Designation of Regulated Flood Prone Hazard Areas

e. First Quarter Budget Amendments

8. Consideration of Issuance of IFT Exemption for One Way Products Inc.

9. Consideration of Creation of IDD for Faraday Properties LLC

10. Resolution 2023 Kalamazoo County Hazard Mitigation Plan

11. Consideration of Policy Change Sale or Disposal of Township Real or Personal Property

12. First Reading: Zoning Text Amendments to Article 50: Schedule of Regulations, Section

50.60C: Setback Provisions: Business & Industrial Districts

13. First Reading: Zoning Text Amendments to Article 55, Signs and Billboards

14. Consideration of Tentative Preliminary Plan – Westridge Site Condominium

15. Consideration of Sale of Property for MDOT US-131 BL Project

16. Discussion of Employee Handbook Amendments, Section 4.1, and Section 5.3

17. Public Comment

18. Board Member Comments & Committee Updates

19. Other Updates & Business

20. Adjournment

1

https://www.oshtemo.org/files/assets/public/v/1/boards-and-committees/township-board/minutes/03262024-meeting-minutes.pdf
https://www.oshtemo.org/files/assets/public/v/1/boards-and-committees/township-board/minutes/03192024-joint-meeting-minutes.pdf
https://www.oshtemo.org/files/assets/public/v/1/boards-and-committees/township-board/documents/04092024-rd-report.pdf


Oshtemo Township Board of Trustees 

Supervisor 

Cheri Bell 
Clerk 

Dusty Farmer 

Treasurer 

Clare Buszka 

Trustees 

Kristin Cole 

Zak Ford 

Michael Chapman

216-5220 cbell@oshtemo.org

216-5224 dfarmer@oshtemo.org 

216-5260 cbuszka@oshtemo.org 

760-6769
375-4260

271-5513

Township Department Information 

Assessor: 

Kristine Biddle 

Fire Chief: 

Greg McComb 

Ordinance Enforcement: 

Rick Suwarsky 

Parks Director: 

Vanessa Street
Rental Info 

Planning Director: 

Jodi Stefforia
Public Works Director: 

Anna Horner 

216-5225 assessor@oshtemo.org 

375-0487 gmccomb@oshtemo.org 

216-5227 rsuwarsky@oshtemo.org 

216-5233 
216-5224 

vstreet@oshtemo.org 
oshtemo@oshtemo.org 

jstefforia@oshtemo.org

216-5228 ahorner@oshtemo.org 

Policy for Public Comment 
Township Board Regular Meetings, Planning Commission & ZBA Meetings 

All public comment shall be received during one of the following portions of the Agenda of an open meeting: 

a. Citizen Comment on Non-Agenda Items or Public Comment – while this is not intended to be a forum for

dialogue and/or debate, if a citizen inquiry can be answered succinctly and briefly, it will be addressed or it may

be delegated to the appropriate Township Official or staff member to respond at a later date. More complicated

questions can be answered during Township business hours through web contact, phone calls, email

(oshtemo@oshtemo.org), walk-in visits, or by appointment.

b. After an agenda item is presented by staff and/or an applicant, public comment will be invited. At the close of
public comment there will be Board discussion prior to call for a motion. While comments that include questions
are important, depending on the nature of the question, whether it can be answered without further research,
and the relevance to the agenda item at hand, the questions may not be discussed during the Board deliberation
which follows.

Anyone wishing to make a comment will be asked to come to the podium to facilitate the audio/visual 
capabilities of the meeting room. Speakers will be invited to provide their name, but it is not required. 

All public comment offered during public hearings shall be directed, and relevant, to the item of business on 
which the public hearing is being conducted. Comment during the Public Comment Non-Agenda Items may be 
directed to any issue. 

All public comment shall be limited to four (4) minutes in duration unless special permission has been granted in 
advance by the Supervisor or Chairperson of the meeting. 

Public comment shall not be repetitive, slanderous, abusive, threatening, boisterous, or contrary to the orderly 
conduct of business. The Supervisor or Chairperson of the meeting shall terminate any public comment which 
does not follow these guidelines. 

(adopted 5/9/2000) 
(revised 5/14/2013) 
(revised 1/8/2018) 

Questions and concerns are welcome outside of public meetings during Township Office hours through phone calls, 
stopping in at the front desk, by email, and by appointment. The customer service counter is open from Monday- 
Thursday, 8 a.m.-1 p.m. and 2-5 p.m., and on Friday, 8 a.m.–1 p.m. Additionally, questions and concerns are 
accepted at all hours through the website contact form found at www.oshtemo.org, email, postal service, and 
voicemail. Staff and elected official contact information is provided below. If you do not have a specific person to 
contact, please direct your inquiry to oshtemo@oshtemo.org and it will be directed to the appropriate person. 

Neil Sikora nsikora@oshtemo.org

kcole@oshtemo.org 

zford@oshtemo.org 

375-4260 mchapman@oshtemo.org

375-4260

2

mailto:libbyhc@oshtemo.org
mailto:dfarmer@oshtemo.org
mailto:cbuszka@oshtemo.org
mailto:cbell@oshtemo.org
mailto:kcole@oshtemo.org
mailto:zford@oshtemo.org
mailto:kbradford@oshtemo.org
mailto:assessor@oshtemo.org
mailto:gmccomb@oshtemo.org
mailto:rsuwarsky@oshtemo.org
mailto:khigh@oshtemo.org
mailto:oshtemo@oshtemo.org
mailto:ilubbert@oshtemo.org
mailto:ahorner@oshtemo.org
mailto:oshtemo@oshtemo.org
http://www.oshtemo.org/
mailto:oshtemo@oshtemo.org


Zoom Instructions for Participants 

Before a videoconference: 

1. You will need a computer, tablet, or smartphone with a speaker or headphones. You will have
the opportunity to check your audio immediately upon joining a meeting.

2. If you are going to make a public comment, please use a microphone or headphones with a
microphone to cut down on feedback, if possible.

3. Details, phone numbers, and links to videoconference or conference call are provided below.
The details include a link to “Join via computer” as well as phone numbers for a conference call
option. It will also include the 11-digit Meeting ID.

To join the videoconference: 

1. At the start time of the meeting, click on this link to join via computer. You may be instructed
to download the Zoom application.

2. You have an opportunity to test your audio at this point by clicking on “Test Computer Audio.”
Once you are satisfied that your audio works, click on “Join audio by computer.”

You may also join a meeting without the link by going to join.zoom.us on any browser and entering this 
Meeting ID: 836 7398 7592

If you are having trouble hearing the meeting or do not have the ability to join using a computer, tablet, or 
smartphone then you can join via conference call by following instructions below. 

To join the conference by phone: 
1. On your phone, dial the teleconferencing number: 1-929-205-6099
2. When prompted using your touchtone (DTMF) keypad, enter the Meeting ID

number: 836 7398 7592#

Participant controls in the lower-left corner of the Zoom screen: 

Using the icons at the bottom of the Zoom screen, you can (some features will be locked to participants during 
the meeting): 

• Participants – opens a pop-out screen that includes a “Raise Hand” icon that you may use to
raise a virtual hand. This will be used to indicate that you want to make a public comment.

• Chat – opens pop-up screen that allows participants to post comments during the
meeting.

If you are attending the meeting by phone, to use the “Raise Hand” feature press *9 on your 
touchtone keypad. 

Public comments will be handled by the “Raise Hand” method as instructed above within Participant Controls. 

Closed Caption: 

 Turn on Closed Caption: 
Using the icons at the bottom of the Zoom screen: 

1. Click on the “Live Transcription” button.
2. Then select “Show Subtitle”.

3

https://join.zoom.us/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83673987592


Mission: 

To advance the quality of life of all residents through a commitment to responsible growth, and 

value-driven municipal services that promote the relationships among economic vitality, 

environmental stewardship, and social equity. 

Vision:

A sustainable and innovative community built through a legacy of planned, responsible growth 

and rural preservation. 

Core Values:

PUBLIC SERVICE 

• Fair treatment to all people.

• Each customer is welcomed and that their input is wanted.

• Difficult questions are not marginalized.

• Allow residents to interact directly with the township staff and officials.

• Decisions are made based on the value to our Township and residents.

SUSTAINABILITY 

• Meet the needs of the present without compromising future generations.

o Consider the environment through practices that reduce impacts.

o Value conscious decision making.

o Committing to quality Fire and Police protection.

INNOVATION 

• Providing the best value-conscious technology currently available.

• Leverage new technologies and ways of doing business to increase accessibility and

improve services. 

PROFESSIONALISM 

• Hire staff with strong core competencies within their given profession.

• Commitment to continuous improvement to government operations.

• Dedicated to open communication to improve productivity and effectiveness.

INTEGRITY 

• Decisions are made logically through the collection of evidence, facts, and public input.

• When promises are made, we follow through.

• We do not obfuscate – we say what we mean and do what we say.

• Transparent governmental practices are of the highest priority.

FISCAL STEWARDSHIP 

• Ensure that taxpayer investments are spent wisely, effectively and efficiently.

4



5



6



7275 W. Main Street, Kalamazoo, MI  49009, (269) 216-5220, Fax (269) 375-7180, www.oshtemo.org 

Memorandum 

Date: April 5, 2024 

To: Township Board 

From: Dusty Farmer, Clerk 

  Subject:         1st Quarter Budget Amendments 

Objective 

Motion to approve the requested 1st quarter budget amendments. 

Information Provided 

See attached. 

Core Values 

(Public Service, Professionalism, Integrity, Fiscal Stewardship) 

7



GL Number Description GL Number Description
101‐250‐74000 NEW Legal Filing Fees 500.00$        101‐000‐40000 Carryover 500.00$       

Total 500.00$        Total 500.00$       

GL Number Description GL Number Description
101‐267‐71600 Health & Life 720.00$        101‐000‐40000 Carryover 720.00$       
206‐336‐71600 Health & Life 510.00$        101‐000‐40000 Carryover 510.00$       

Total 1,230.00$    Total 1,230.00$   

GL Number Description GL Number Description
101‐249‐96300 Media & Comms Consulting 28,656.25$  101‐000‐40000 Carryover 28,656.25$ 

Total 28,656.25$  Total 28,656.25$ 

GL Number Description GL Number Description
101‐567‐963100 Contracted Lawn Maintenance 16,500.00$  101‐567‐96300 Contracted Grave Openings 16,500.00$ 

Total 16,500.00$  Total 16,500.00$ 

GL Number Description GL Number Description
101‐701‐80800 Consultants 4,043.00$    101‐000‐40000 Carryover 4,043.00$   

Total 4,043.00$    Total 4,043.00$   

Final work of the Drake and Flesher Master Plan updates from 2023

These two lines were consolidated into one during the change of chart of accounts 
that was performed last year. This request will split them back out again to mirror 
past budget monitoring. 

Funds Requested To
Amount

Funds Requested From
Amount Explanation of Request

Unspent funds from 2023 plus consultant invoices for 2024 for Media and 
Communications Consultant. This will break out the consultant costs from the 
newsletter costs in the Public Education line previously used. 

Funds Requested To
Amount

Funds Requested From
Amount Explanation of Request

When we switched HSA, HRA, & FSA providers from Navia to Kushner in 2024, we 
elected to have a runout period with Navia through 03/31/24 to give employee's 
time to submit claims. We must pay Navia through this runout period. 

Funds Requested To
Amount

Funds Requested From
Amount Explanation of Request

This is a new GL line for the Legal Department within the General Fund to pay legal 
filing fees. 

Funds Requested To
Amount

Funds Requested From
Amount Explanation of Request

Funds Requested To
Amount

Funds Requested From
Amount Explanation of Request

8



 
7275 W. Main Street, Kalamazoo, MI  49009, (269) 216-5220, Fax (269) 375-7180, www.oshtemo.org 

 

 

Memorandum & Request 
Date: April 9, 2024  

To: Township Board 

From: Vanessa Street, Parks Director   
 

  Subject:         Budget Amendment Request for playground equipment  
   

 
 

 
Objective 
That the Board would approve a budget amendment to purchase replacement playground equipment for Township 
Park.  
 
 
From:  GL 107-000-40000 Parks Fund Carryover 
To: GL 107-756-93100 Maintenance Services  
 
 
Proposed Motion: Motion to approve a budget amendment in the amount of $5,251 to purchase a replacement 
VistaSky Rope Tower 4 for Township Park.  
 
Background 
It was identified in 2023 that the ropes climber (VistaSky Rope Tower 4) at Oshtemo Township Park is showing wear 
and in need of replacement. Three options for replacement were brought to the Parks Committee for discussion. It was 
determined that due to the high popularity and constant use of the current structure, the structure should be replaced with 
an identical structure. $25,000 is in the 2024 budget for this project. However, due to cost increases, the price of the 
climber has increased to $30,250.66 in 2024.  
Climber information and quote are attached.  
 
Core Values 
Integrity, Fiscal Stewardship 
 
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9



10



11



12



7275 W. Main Street, Kalamazoo, MI  49009, (269) 216-5220, Fax (269) 375-7180, www.oshtemo.org 
 

 

Memorandum 
Date: April 9th, 2024 

To: Township Board 

From: Zach Pearson Public Works Project Manager 

Subject: Public Works Q1 Budget Amendments 

 
Objective 

Receive Board approval of Public Works quarter 1 budget amendments.  
 

Proposed Motion 
I make the motion to approve the Public Works budget amendments as outlined below.   

 
Background 
 

Construction Engineering Fees moved to correct line of Construction Costs per accountant 
recommendation to be recognized within infrastructure investment.  
 
From: GL 485-536-82000.WM7TO8  Engineering Fees  
To:   GL 485-536-96400.WM7TO8   Construction Costs ($171,000) 
 
Change order #6 for 7th/West Main Sanitary Sewer Extension to install property line cleanouts per 
new (2024 update) City of Kalamazoo specifications. Costs to be reimbursed by the City of 
Kalamazoo.  
 
From: GL 485-000-40000   Carryover – Sewer Fund 
To:   GL 485-536-96400.WM7TO8   Construction Costs -  ($27,736.58) 
 
Change Order #7 Install additional water main valves and fittings to serve future development. This 
work is recommended as an engineering best practice to prevent “cutting-in” fittings in the future 
since development plans were submitted and reasonably anticipated to occur in the immediate 
future. Also, additional fittings needed to deflect around storm culvert into MDOT’s retention pond 
which was at lower depth than as-built plans.  
 
From: GL 486-000-40000   Carryover – Water Fund 
To:   GL 486-536-96400.WM7TO8   Construction Costs -  ($20,463.20) 
 
Staff has presented Master Plan projects and in 2023 Board approved pursuing purchase of 5 acres 
at 1400 N 9th Street to complete these objectives. Budget amendment includes land purchase and 
anticipated 2024 design work:  
 

Land Purchase  $95,000 
Fence, Closing Costs $10,000 
Survey & Design  $25,000 
RCKC Permitting   $  5,000 (estimated) 

 

13



7275 W. Main Street, Kalamazoo, MI  49009, (269) 216-5220, Fax (269) 375-7180, www.oshtemo.org 
 

 
From: GL 204-000-40000   Carryover – Road Fund 
To:   GL 204-441-97600    Capital Outlay – Roads ($135,000) 
 

Core Values 
Public Service, Sustainability, Innovation, Integrity, Fiscal Stewardship 
 

14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



7275 W. Main Street, Kalamazoo, MI  49009, (269) 216-5220, Fax (269) 375-7180, www.oshtemo.org 

Memorandum 

Date: April 9 2024 

To: Township Board 

From: 

  Subject: Sale of Property 

Objective 

Motion to approve the revisions of the Sale or Disposal of Township Real or Personal Property. 

Background 

This policy was last updated in 2021. In an effort understand the process of selling land to another municipality, it was 

brough to my attention that we would be bound by our own policy and forced to charge market value for the sale of 

property that was purchases for the purpose of selling to MDOT. I asked Attorney Porter to draft revisions that would 

allow the Board to recognize the best use of tax dollars and public purpose for development, especially infrastructure.  

Information Provided 

Policy with tracked changes 

Core Values 

(Public Service, Sustainability, Innovation, Professionalism, Integrity, Fiscal Stewardship) 

48



1  

OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

 

SALE OR DISPOSAL OF TOWNSHIP REAL OR PERSONAL PROPERTY POLICY 

 

Adopted: June 8, 2021 

 

Effective: June 8, 2021April 10, 2024 

 

General Purpose: 

 

Oshtemo Charter Township may sell, transfer, convey, or dispose of any real or personal 

property, or part thereof, which is not needed for public purposes. Township owned 

property may not be sold, transferred, or conveyed for less than its fair market value, 

unless in furtherance of a public purpose. The purpose of this policy is to ensure that the 

sale, conveyance, transfer, and/or disposal of Township property is handled consistently, 

and in accordance with state and local laws and requirements. This policy will ensure the 

accountability, transparency, and ethical behavior of Township representatives in the sale, 

conveyance, transfer, and/or disposal of Township real and personal property. 

 

I. SALE OF REAL PROPERTY 

 

The sale of Township owned real property may not only impact the Township taxpayers, 

but also the abutting property owners who may wish to have input on the sale or transfer 

of such property. Accordingly, the following procedures will be followed for the sale or 

transfer of Township real property. 

 

A. Internal Request for Sale or Transfer of Real Property 

 

A "Request for Sale or Disposal of Oshtemo Township Property Form" is 

completed providing a description of the property, the parcel number, legal 

description (if available), and any other information regarding the property, 

its use, zoning, whether the land will be split from a larger parcel, etc. and 

submitted to the Township Board for review. If the Board approves the 

proposal, the Township Supervisor or Clerk may sign the "Request for Sale 

or Disposal of Oshtemo Township Property Form" on the Board's behalf. 

 

B. Mailing of Notice to Nearby Property Owners 

 

Except as set forth below, A a notice shall be served to all property 

owners within three hundred feet (300') of the boundaries of the proposed 

Township real property to be sold or transferred at least thirty (30) days 

prior to the scheduled meeting of the Township Board to authorize the 

execution of a sale/transfer agreement by the Township. Such notice shall 

be sent to all owners and parties in interest as reflected on the property tax 

assessment records of the Township to the last known address as reflected 

on such records. The notice shall provide information on the proposed 

sale or transfer, invite written and/or verbal 

49



2  

comments to be submitted at the Township Board, and provide the date and 

time of the meeting at which the sale or transfer will be considered. 

 

If the Township Board determines that the sale or transfer of real property 

is consistent with and furthers the goals and objectives of the Township’s 

Master Plan, it’s long-term development strategies, and/or the 

development of needed public infrastructure, the notice of the property’s 

potential use, based upon such development plans, is presumed to be 

known to the community, and no further notice is required under this 

section.  

C. Publication of Notice 

 

For real property valued at five thousand dollars ($5,000) or more, the 

Township shall publish the same notice sent to property owners near the 

subject property once in the Kalamazoo Gazette at least thirty (30) days 

prior to the meeting date at which a decision authorizing the sale or transfer 

agreement will occur, unless dispensed with pursuant to paragraph B 

above. Other property may be advertised on the Township's website or 

social media accounts. 

D. Township Authorization of Sale or Transfer 

 

The Township Board shall authorize any agreement for the sale or transfer 

of Township real property in the form of a Township Board resolution. 

 

E. Record of Disposition 

 

The Township will retain all records of the disposition of Township real 

property on a server available to the Township Clerk and Treasurer. Such 

records shall, minimally, include (1) the signed "Request for Sale or 

Disposal of Oshtemo Township Property Form", (2) the signed Township 

Board Resolution authorizing the sale or transfer of the property, (3) the 

signed sales agreement with the purchaser and deed, and (4) a copy of any 

payment received for the sale of the real property. 

II. SALE OF TOWNSHIP PERSONAL PROPERTY OF TANGIBLE VALUE 

 

The Township may sell, convey, or transfer personal Township property with remaining 

tangible value as follows: 

A. Determination of Value and Disposition Approval 

 

1. The Department Head having charge of the personal property will 

determine the estimated value of each item of personal Township property 

and complete the "Request for Sale or Disposal of Oshtemo Township 

Property Form". 

50



3  

2. When the estimated value of an item of personal property is two 

thousand dollars ($2,000) or less, such property may be sold with the 

approval of the Department Head having charge of the personal property. A 

signature by the Department Head must be obtained on the "Request for 

Sale or Disposal of Oshtemo Township Property Form" before an item is 

offered for sale. 

51



4  

3. When the estimated value of an item of personal property exceeds 

two thousand dollars ($2,000) but is less than Ten Thousand Dollars 

($10,000.00), the sale must be approved by the Department Head and the 

Public Official to whom the Department Head reports. The Township 

Supervisor, Clerk or Treasurer may sign the "Request for Sale or Disposal 

of Oshtemo Township Property Form." 

4. When the estimated value of an item of personal property exceeds 

Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00), the Township Board must approve 

disposition of the item. The Township Supervisor, Clerk or Treasurer may 

sign the "Request for Sale or Disposal of Oshtemo Township Property 

Form" on the Board's behalf. 

 

B. Posting of Notice of Sale and Solicitation of Bids for Purchase 

 

The Township will post a notice of the proposed sale of authorized 

Township personal property with an estimated value less than two thousand 

dollars ($2,000) on the bulletin boards in the Township Office, and on the 

Township's website unless submitted to an auction site. When the 

Township's personal property has an estimated value of two thousand 

dollars ($2,000) or more, such property will also be advertised via the 

Township's website and/or social media to solicit sealed bids. The 

Township may also place personal property items on online sales or auction 

sites, if deemed appropriate, to solicit bids with information on the bidding 

location(s) available via the Township's website and/or social media. All 

sales shall be "as is" and sold to the highest bidder. 

The Township Supervisor, Clerk, or the appropriate Department Head shall 

publicly open any sealed bids at a publicly announced dated and time. 

If the Township does not receive any bids for the personal property, or the 

bids received are substantially below fair market value for the item(s), the 

Township Supervisor may negotiate the sale of such Township personal 

property in the open market to the best financial advantage of the Township. 

 

C. Record of Disposition 

The Department Head will retain all records of the disposition of Township 

personal property of tangible value on a server available to the Township 

Clerk and Treasurer. Such records shall, minimally, include: (1) the signed 

"Request for Sale or Disposal of Oshtemo Township Property Form", (2) 

the signed sales agreement with the purchaser, and (3) a copy of any 

payment received for the sale of the Township personal property. 

52



5  

III. DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS TOWNSHIP PERSONAL PROPERTY -WITH 
 

NO MARKET VALUE 

 

A. Determination of Surplus Status 

 
Surplus Township personal property refers only to Township property 

which has no remaining market value. 

 

B. Authorization for Disposal 

 
Surplus Township personal property may be disposed of after the 

Department Head in charge of such personal property completes the 

"Request for Sale or Disposal of Oshtemo Township Property Form." A log 

of all items disposed of shall be maintained by all Departments. 

 

C. Method of Disposal 

 

After receiving authorization for disposal, the Department Head in charge 

of such property may donate, convey, or otherwise dispose of such property 

in a reasonable manner. The Department Head will ensure, and/or work with 

the Maintenance Director to confirm, that any item(s) containing hazardous 

waste, or components, are processed in an environmentally responsible way 

in accordance with any state or local laws and regulations for the disposal 

of such item(s). Where possible, the Department Head will obtain a receipt 

or other proof of the method for disposal of the surplus personal property. 

 

D. Record of Disposition 

 
The Department Head will save any records relating to the disposal of 

surplus Township personal property on a server available to the Township 

Clerk and Treasurer. Such records shall, minimally, include: (1) the signed 

"Request for Sale or Disposal of Oshtemo Township Property Form", and 

(2) any documentation of the method for disposal of the surplus Township 

personal property. 

 

 

 

Motion was made by Zak Ford and seconded by Kristin Cole , to adopt the 

foregoing Policy by Board Resolution. 

 

 

Upon roll call vote the following voted "Aye": 

Elizabeth Heiny-Cogswell, Dusty Farmer, Clare Buszka, 

Cheri Bell, Zak Ford, Kizzy Bradford and Kristin Cole 

53



6  

The following voted "Nay": None 

The following were Absent: None 

The following Abstained:   None 

 

The Supervisor declared the motion carried and the Policy Resolution duly adopted. 

 

Oshtemo Charter Township 

 
*************************************** 

 

CERTIFICATE 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

) ss. 

COUNTY OF KALAMAZOO ) 

 

I, Dusty Farmer, the duly appointed and acting Clerk of the Township of Oshtemo, 

certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of a Resolution adopted at a 

regular meeting of the Oshtemo Charter Township Board held, via permitted ZOOM video 

conference during COVID-19 public health crises as authorized by PA 254 of 2020, on 

June 8, 2021, which meeting was preceded by required notices under the Michigan Open 

Meetings Act, being 1976 PA 267; that a quorum of the Board was present and voted in 

favor of said Resolution; and that minutes of said meeting were kept and will be or have 

been made available as required by said Open Meetings Act. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereto affixed my official signature on this 8th 

day of June, 2021. 

 

Dusty
I 
Farmer, Clerk 

Oshtemo Charter Township 

54



 

 
 
 

 

Oepl Head Completes  c::;) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

on ne sales/auction
 

 l  oavment 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Greater tt,-, $2,000, •-Request for Sale or Township SUpeMSor, Head & Township 

Disposal of Township Clerk or Treasurer c::;) Supervisor, Clerk or c::;) 

Approval Head a reasonable manner server. lnclyd _requ st_f?'""' 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Township Board 
c::;) c::;)I c::;)I sale on"'' Townst,;p 11 

c::;> I Approval I I r! •: =::1! :·.:;'! :•;; ':eusd: :'!": d 
 

 

 

-.- nc•u "•" •.. c::;) '-"l:J.'cifITTlCnl ne<11u a,. r-orm •un•o 1;1y uep\. 111 unWfi,nne. I 
Selu,g or I Property Form" Approval Treasurer 

Dilj>oa,ng 
Township 

P...onal 

Propeny 

 
 

 
 

c::;)I Zo,o Monota,y Value Ic::;) 

 

 

c::;) I Department Head 

I c:::::;) I Form signed by DepIt c=;)I c:::::;>I <>sp.osal Of1 the To:r;ship11 
 

 

  
 

c::;) but less than $10.000 c::;) 

Form signed by Dept Advertise on office Save record of completed 

c::;) Equal to or leu than c::;) e Request for Sale or Department Head c::;) Head & Township c::;) bulletin board or c::;) sale on the Township 

server. lridude request form, $2,000 Di5£0Sal of !own ip Approval SUp sor, Clerk or website, unle_u P?51•d 
,.,.,.., ,., .....c,..,., .................................... ,..,1 I 

55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



7275 W. Main Street, Kalamazoo, MI  49009, (269) 216-5220, Fax (269) 375-7180, www.oshtemo.org 
 

 

Memorandum 
Date: April 9th, 2024 

To: Township Board 

From: Anna Horner, P.E., Public Works Director  

 
Objective 

Receive Board approval for sale of parcel 05-01-180-005.   
 

Proposed Motion 
I make the motion to approve the sale of parcel 05-01-180-005 to the Michigan Department of Transportation 
in the amount of $3,999.08 for the purpose of completing highway improvements.    

 
Background 
In 2021 the Township acquired this parcel of land in anticipation of the future US-131 Business Loop expansion. 
Based on the intent behind the acquisition, I am recommending that we request reimbursement (i.e. purchase) 
equal to the amount of money the Township has spent. The purchase price on 7/23/2021 was $3,216 and taxes 
were $783.08, totaling $3,999.08. MDOT has completed an appraisal and submitted a good faith offer for 
easement of $16,500. The difference will be considered a donation by the Township towards the project.  
 

Information Provided 
Sale of Township Property Form  

PARCELOUTLINED IN RED. 

136



REQUEST FOR SALE OR DISPOSAL OF OSHTEMO TOWNSHIP PROPERTY FORM 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 

Type of Township Property: 

__ Real Property        __ Personal Property (greater than/equal to $10,000) 

__ Personal Property (greater than $2,000, but less than $10,000)   

__ Personal Property (less than/equal to $2,000)            __ Surplus Property (no market value)      

Purchase Price: $___________________  Date of Acquisition: _________________ 

Estimated Current Market Value of Property: $________________________________ 

Request is for Township Property to be:  __ Sold, Transferred, or Conveyed      

__ Disposed of (surplus only) by: ____________________________________________ 

Parcel Number, VIN, etc. for property: _____________________________________ 

Deed number (if known) from conveyance to Township: ________________________________ 

Description of Township Property (attach legal description & deed, if available): 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Are there any easements, use restrictions, or other limitations or conditions relating to this property 
(attach sheets if needed)?  
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Property is being sold:   __ As-is   __ Other (explain) 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Requested By:  ________________________ Date:__________________________ 
Department:    _________________________ 

137

ephillips
Highlight



______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PROPOSED BUYER AND SALES INFORMATION 
 
Name of Proposed Buyer: ________________________________________________________ 
Address: ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Proposed Purchase Price: _________________________________________________________ 
 
Additional terms for purchase: _____________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 

**FOR COMPLETION BY TOWNSHIP OFFICIAL OR DEPARTMENT HEAD** 
 

 
Real Township Property and Personal Property (of value greater than/equal to $10,000):  
 

Board Decision: ___ Sales Request Approved ___ Sales Request Denied 
 
 

I, _________________, the duly appointed and acting _______________ of Oshtemo Charter 
Township, certify that the Township Board reviewed and approved the above request for the sale 
of the identified Township property at its Board meeting of __________________, 202_. In 
accordance with the Oshtemo Charter Township “Sale or Disposal of Township Real or Personal 
Property Policy” I affix my signature below on behalf of the Township Board to approve this 
request. 
 
Date:_____________                                     _________________________________________ 

_____________________, ___________________ 
Oshtemo Charter Township   

 
 
 
 

Personal Property (of value greater than $2,000, but less than $10,000):  
 

___ Sales Request Approved ___ Sales Request Denied 
 

I, _________________, the duly appointed and acting _______________ of Oshtemo Charter 
Township, have reviewed this request for the sale of Township personal property of tangible value 
greater than $2,000, but less than $10,000, as approved by ____________________ (Department 
Head), and in accordance with the Oshtemo Charter Township “Sale or Disposal of Township Real 
or Personal Property Policy” I affix my signature below to approve this request. 
 

138



      Supervisor/Clerk/Treasurer 
 
Date:_____________                                     _________________________________________ 

_____________________, ___________________ 
Oshtemo Charter Township   
 
Department Head 
 

Date:_________                                             _________________________________________ 
 

 
 
 

Personal Property (of value less than or equal to $2,000):  
 

___ Sales Request Approved ___ Sales Request Denied 
 

I, _________________, the duly appointed and acting _______________ of Oshtemo Charter 
Township, have reviewed this request for the sale of Township personal property of tangible value 
less than $2,000, as approved by ____________________ (Department Head), and in accordance 
with the Oshtemo Charter Township “Sale or Disposal of Township Real or Personal Property 
Policy” I affix my signature below to approve this request. 
 
 
      Supervisor/Clerk/Treasurer 
 
Date:_____________                                     _________________________________________ 

_____________________, ___________________ 
Oshtemo Charter Township   
 
Department Head 
 

Date:_________                                             _________________________________________ 
 

 
 
 
Surplus Personal Property (no market value):   
 

___ Disposal Request Approved ___ Disposal Request Denied 
 

I, _________________, the _________________ Department Head of Oshtemo Charter 
Township, have in accordance with the Oshtemo Charter Township “Sale or Disposal of Township 
Real or Personal Property Policy” completed this form for the disposal of Township surplus 
personal property, logged the requested item(s) on the departmental disposal spreadsheet, and affix 
my signature below to approve this request. 

 
Department Head 
 

Date:_________                                             _________________________________________ 
 

139



140



141



142



143



144



145


	0 agenda
	0 Publ Commt_Zoom_Values
	0 Public Comment Policy
	0  Zoom and Log in Information
	0 Core Values and Vision

	7.d. Ord re Second Reading of Text Amendments to General Floodplain Management
	7.e. 2024 1st quarter amendments
	7.e. Budget Amendments
	2024-04-09 Parks Amendment Request
	2024-04-09 Parks Information for Budget Amendment Request
	2024-04-09 Public Works Budget Amendments

	8. Resolution_MM_Tax Abatement Policy - One Way Products Inc
	9. Resolution_MM_Tax Abatement Policy - Faraday Properties LLC
	10. Res re Kzoo County Hazard Mitigation Plan 2023
	11. Sale of Property Revision
	12. Proposed Ord, MM & Rec re First Reading of Text Amendments to Art 50, Sec 50.60c
	13. Proposed Ord, MM, & Rec re First Reading of Text Amendments to Art 55
	14.  Rec Staff Report & MM re Westridge Site Condo
	15. Sale of Property - MDOT US-131 BL Project
	12.a. mem 2024-04-03 Sale of Parcel for 131 BL
	12.b. Request for Sale of Township Property Form (MDOT 131 BL parcel)

	16. Handbook Amendments Sec 4.1  5.3

	Purchase Price: $3,216 + 783.08 Taxes = $3,999.08
	Date of Acquisition: 07/23/2021
	Estimated Current Market Value of Property: 16,500
	Disposed of surplus only by: 
	Parcel Number VIN etc for property: 05-01-180-005
	Deed number if known from conveyance to Township: 
	Description of Township Property attach legal description  deed if available 1: The Township purchased this 2 acre parcel through the first right of refusal process in anticipating of the expansion of
	Description of Township Property attach legal description  deed if available 2: US-131 Business Route project in the future. At that time, we did not know what the funding source would be and thought this
	Description of Township Property attach legal description  deed if available 3: could be part of a local match for grants if needed. MDOT has secured funding directly and no matching funds are needed. MDOT
	Description of Township Property attach legal description  deed if available 4: is finalizing the design, permitting and property acquisition and has approached Staff about purchasing this parcel. 
	Description of Township Property attach legal description  deed if available 5: 
	Description of Township Property attach legal description  deed if available 6: Staff is recommending the sale in support of this project and for the reimbursement of costs incurred. 
	Description of Township Property attach legal description  deed if available 7: 
	attach sheets if needed 1: legal non-confirming/not buildable 
	attach sheets if needed 2: 
	attach sheets if needed 3: 
	attach sheets if needed 4: 
	Property is being sold 1: 
	Property is being sold 2: 
	Property is being sold 3: 
	Requested By: Anna Horner
	Date: 
	Department: Public Works 
	Check Box2: Off
	Check Box3: Off
	Check Box4: Yes
	Check Box5: Off
	Check Box6: Off
	Check Box10: Yes
	Check Box11: Off
	Name of Proposed Buyer: Michigan Department of Transportation
	Address: 
	Proposed Purchase Price: $3,999.08
	Additional terms for purchase 1: MDOT will designate the land not within the limited access ROW as a "Scenic Strip" and it will not be 
	Additional terms for purchase 2: able to be developed in the future nor will it be able to have billboards on it. 
	Additional terms for purchase 3: 
	Additional terms for purchase 4: 
	Additional terms for purchase 5: 
	Additional terms for purchase 6: 
	FOR COMPLETION BY TOWNSHIP OFFICIAL OR DEPARTMENT HEAD: 
	Board Decision: 
	Sales Request Approved: 
	I: 
	of the identified Township property at its Board meeting of: 
	Date_2: 
	1: 
	2: 
	Personal Property of value greater than 2000 but less than 10000: 
	Sales Request Approved_2: 
	I_2: 
	greater than 2000 but less than 10000 as approved by: 
	Dropdown7: [Supervisor]
	Date_3: 
	SupervisorClerkTreasurer 1: 
	SupervisorClerkTreasurer 2: 
	Date_4: 
	Department Head: 
	Personal Property of value less than or equal to 2000: 
	Sales Request Approved_3: 
	I_3: 
	less than 2000 as approved by: 
	Date_5: 
	SupervisorClerkTreasurer 1_2: 
	SupervisorClerkTreasurer 2_2: 
	Date_6: 
	Department Head_2: 
	Surplus Personal Property no market value: 
	Disposal Request Approved: 
	I_4: 
	the: 
	Date_7: 
	Department Head_3: 
	Dropdown8: [Treasurer]
	Dropdown9: [Clerk]


